
|INTHE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

v. > Criminal Action No. 23-

ROBERT HUNTER BIDEN, )

Defendant, }

MEMORANDUMOFPLEAAGREEMENT
Pursuant to discussions between the United StatesofAmerica, by and through

4 attorney, David C. Weis, United Statos Attorney for the District of Delaware, and

the defendant, Robert Hunter Biden, by and through his attorney, Christopher Clark,
Esquire, the following agreement is hereby entered into by the respective parties

1. The defendant waives any challenge to the Information based on venue

and agrees to plead guilty in the United States District Court for the District of

Delaware to: Counts One and Two of the Information, which charge the defendant

with willful failure to pay tax, in violation of Title 26, United States Code, Section

7203 "

2. The defendant understands that the maximum penalties for each of

Counts One and Two are: 12 months of imprisonment; a £100,000 fine or twice the

grossgainor lossfrom the offense, whichever is greater; 1 year of supervised release;

restitution; a$25special asseasment; and the costa of prosecution, which the parties
stipulatetobe zero,

© 8. ‘The defondant understands that if thers were a trial with regard to
CountsOneandTwothegovernmentwould have to prove the following elements

Yoyond  rorsomble doubt: (1)the defendant had a duty to pay a tax; (2) the tax
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wa notpai a ch tne requiredBY Taw;and (3) the fuluretopay waswillful

defendant knowingly, voluntarily, and intelligently admits his guilt to cachofthe

abave-described elementsof Counts One and Two. The defendant further admits to

the information contained in the Statement of Facts, attached to thin Memorandum

asExhibit 1.

4. The defendant in pleading guilty to Counts One and Two because he is,

in fet, guilty. i

6. PursuanttoSection6B1.4ofthe November 1,2021,edition ofthe United

StatesSentencing Guidelines Manual (USSG), the parties enter into the

following stipulations Slut

a. PursuanttoUSSG.§21.1, the amount ofloss as toCounts One

andTwo, including relevant conduct as defined in USSG.

 SIBI3,is no lemthan $1,199,524 and no grester than

po oteor 5% enallot ho vs

bho conduct setforthintheStatementofFacts (Attachment A)

to the Dives n Agreement filed this same day does not

tod yao stitute relevantconduct pursuanttoU5.5.6.§1B1.3;andreli Ba oe

ib led thattheUnited Statesdocs not subsequently learn of
. SOA 3

n the defendant inconsistent with the acceptance of
i BE :

3 i the United States agrees thatinconsideration of

timely guilty plea, it will not oppose atwolevel

: nse Levelpursuant toUSSG.§31.1).

mined that, the defendant's Offense

(Ruths application of the
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y
aforementioned tworlevel reduction, the United States agrees

thatthedefendanta OffenseLevelshould bereducod byone
additional level, pursuant to USSG. § SEL1(b), for a total
reductionofthreelevels,

It is understoodandagreed that: (1) these stipulations are not binding upon either
the Probation Office arthe Court; and (2) the Court may make factual and legal

determinationsthatdifferfromthesestipulationsandthatmayresultinan increase

or decreasein theSentencing Guidelines range and the sentence that may be

imposed. crotutmin st eles: i

6. Forreasonstobearticulatedator near the time of sentencing, the

UnitedStateswill recommendcco mmend unsentence ofprobation.

7. TheUnit d Statesretainstheright to defond the rulings of the District

Courtatany aubs quentproce dir pdt uy 09
8 Tho defendsatunder “ nds that the District Court must consider the

United StatesSal Guidelineothe ppl blestatutory maximum penalties,
aaditheif eto in 18 USC.§ 3550)in determining an appropriate

nonce, The, deindant understands. that. th wlimate. determination of an
propi / mains judg. The Court may imposea
atenceth ls below, or iscontained withinthesentencing range

proscribed idelines. The defendant expresslyacknowledges
thatif the C aide the rangeset. forth in the Sentencing

i h dant expected, orit contrary to the
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9. Inexchangeforthepromises made
by the government inenteringthis N

plea ugronment, the defendant knows that he has, and voluntarily andexpressly

waives,thorightto appea
lorcollaterallyattackhisc

onviction, sentence, OF anyother

‘matterrelatingto thisprosecution, whethersuch a ightto appes] oF collateral attack

arises undor 18 USC. § 8742, 28 USC, § 1201, 28 USC. § 2255, ar any other

provisionoflaw. Notwith
standingtheforegoing,the defendant reserves the right to

(1fleanappeal othr collateralmotionon thegroundsthat he received ineffective

assistance of counselund (2) appoalhissentence if: (a) the government. appeals

from tho senteac; o™denne sentence exceeds the statutory maximum for

che affinestforthi he ite StatesCod; a (0) th Dic Court imposes an

“apseard varianes® above the finalSentencing Guideline rango that t determines at

on
10. Tho defendantagrees topay the$50 special assessment the day of

sentoncingsnl ; aia sors

nm presely incorporates Attachment A, which is

ttached hen I. In accordance with the June 30, 2016,

ji ng ° Show duscourtsgovlsites/dod/flesgeneral-

ky sf B20Cue pd,the. government. routinely

J : ;ir o x may notcontain additional terms.

Bent A contains nditiona tors, the parties

te iy gh 2 v

3 and 663 A, the defendant agrees to the

out ofthe victin'slosses attributable to

tobe zero
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because the self-assessed tax due at the time of filing and associated interest and

penalties have been paid to the Internal Revenue Service by a third-party on behalf
of the defendant. The defendant understands that an unanticipated amount of a

Restitution Order will notserve as groundstowithdraw his guilty plea. The partion

further understand that should the Internal Revenue Service determine there are

additional taxes dueand owing for tax years 2014-2019, they are not subject to the

termsofthis agreement. For purposesofthisMemorandum, the sole victimofCount

One and Count Twoistho UnitedStatesTreasury.
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18 It in further agreed by the undersigned parties that this Memorandum y

and Exhibit 1 — together with sealed Attachment A — mupersedes all prior promises,

feprencntations, and statements af the parties; that this Memorandum mey be

‘modified only in writing signed by all the parties; and that any and all promises,

ropresentations, and statements made prior to or after this Memorandum are null

and void and have no effect whatsoever, unless they comport with the subsequent

written modification provisionsofthis paragraph.

DAVID C. WEISS
im UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

a ;
hristapher Clark, Esquire Leo J. Wise

Attorneyfor Defendant DerokE.Hines
vagy So fs: Special Assistant United States Attorneys
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EXHIBIT 1

At all times relevant to the instant Information, the defendant, Robert Hunter

Biden (“Biden”) was an attorney and businessman with lucrative domestic and

international business interests, From 2017 to 2019, he served on the board of a

Ukrainian energy company and a Chinese private equity fund. He further negotiated
and executed contracts for business and legal services that paid millions of dollars of

compensationtohim and/or his domestic corporations, Owasco, PC and Owasco, LLC.

Through at lest early 2017, he also wan emplayed by a prestigious multi-national
law firm in an“ofcounsel” capacity. For this work, he earned substantial income,

totaling more than $2.3 million in 2017 and $2.1 million in 2018,

Biden also has a well-documented and long-standing struggle with substance

abuse. Following the death of his brother in 2015, Biden relapsed and over time

progressed from alcohol to abusing illegal drugs, including crack cocaine in 2016.

This contributed to the collapse of bis marriage, with his divorce finalized in March

2017, as well as the collapse of his most significant professional relationship in Fall

2017. Nonetheless, in 2017, despite his addiction, Biden successfully entered into

business ventures and landed logal clients, earning millions of dollars. By his own
telling in a memoir published in 2021, Biden's substance abuse worsened in 2018, a
year that included a move to Los Angeles and what he has described as a “spring
and summer of nonstop debauchery.” Even during this period, however, Biden
continued to earn money and oxercise control over his personal and corporate
finances.

Federalincome tax returns and payments are due on or about April 15 of each
year for the prior calendar year. Biden, like many other taxpayers, routinely
requestedan automatic extension to file his returns, pushing the due date for a tax
returntoonor October 15. An extension of time to file a return, however, does

not extend the« ¢ for payment of taxes, which remain due on the April filing

8Lovally off it
During calendar year 2017, Biden earned substantial income, including: just

under $1 million froma company he formed with the CEO ofa Chinese business
congloneraate, $666,066from hindomestic business interests; approximately
$664,000 from 4Chinese infrastructure investment company; $500,000 in director's

fies froma Ukrainian energy company; $70,000relating to a Romanian business; and
© $48,000from themulti-national law firm.
Nee tabieb a anti:
no aroughiouttaeyen?” 20 ,Biden worked with a DC/Maryland-based

| accountant®to ‘prepare’ his ‘indiidual and corporate tax returns. In 2018, this

[Bipccotnin who diadin 2019) prop ared Biden's2017 corporate and individual

incomeaxreturns and throughout hefall repeatedly tempito provide therm to
Biden for review and signature. These efforts included directly contacting Biden,
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hs

d sending copies to hia former X
reaching out to his administrativeassistant, an ‘reviewed the returns and sent
business partner. The former business partner substance and reminded
several email to Biden in which ho commented on their suRCC TOE0el,
Bidonofhis filing obligations. The former businesspartner igned nor submitted
Bidon at Biden's offico. Deapite these actions, Biden neither vn
the individualorcorporate income tax returns to the Internal SR ;

the accountant timely prepare Biden's individual and corporal
ax eur teacountans eptedy encouraged Biden to ely pay the too
associated with the 2017 tax returns. Beginning in April 2018 and continuing int
October 2018, the accountant advised Biden to make his tax payments,Jeune
approximately $600,000 owed by Biden personally and an additional $204,000 owe
by Owasco, PC. Biden told the accountant he could pay $26,000 in April 2018towards
his taxes, but no auch payment was made to the Internal Revenue Service. His large
tax liability stemmed in part from the fact that over the courseof2017, Biden began
withdrawing substantial funds outsideofOwasco, PC's established payroll system,
which had been created, in part, to ensure that Biden had sufficient withholdings to
timely pay any outstanding tax liability. The endof year liability should not have
come as a surprise. At the time of those withdrawals, Biden's business partner
advised him that these transfers, made without withholding, would result in a
significant tax liabilityatyear end.

Despite his large outstanding tax liability and profligate spending, on orabout April 17, 2018, the due date for 2017 tax payments, Biden did, in fact, havethe funds available to pay his outstanding 2017 tax liability for both his personal
andcorporate returns. On ar about March 22, 2018, Biden received a $1,000,000
payment into his Owasco, .LLCbankAccount as payment for legal fees for PatrickHo and $939,000 remained availableasoftax day. Over the next six months Bidenwoldspend almostthe entiretyof this balance on personal expenses, includinglarge cash wi thd fey (transfers to his personal account, travel, andnte nment. A

Biden earn Bandsomely and spend wildly in 2018. He received a
itt over $2.6 millionin businessand consulting fous from the company he formed
withtheCRC * business conglomerate and the Ukrainian energycompany. H the structure ofa stable business partner and still in
Pe on, Biden essentially ignored his tax obligations, withholdingly 5, loss than6% oftho taxes owed. Tax returns and flings

on April 15:2019.Onthat date, Biden traded emails
his. attorneyabout. socking an extension. The
bligation fomak  @ tax payment on that date,

fle a return.Ultimately, the extension was filed,
15,2 19. Bide bo ever, paid nothing. As with
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/ ta year 2017, at tho timo hin 2018 tax payment wa due, Biden continued to have
Peleeadie abilitytopay his tax liability, having rocaived payment
Fa pnor 58,000 during March and April 2019. By lato May, Biden

ny o entire sum on personal expenses, including large can
, payments to or on behalf of his children, erodit card balances, and car

payments for his Pornche.
After numerous programs and trips to rehab, Biden got saber in May 2019, the

same month he married his current wife. Ho han remained sober since. Biden
remained in California and spent muchof Summer 2019 painting and developing
plans for his memoir,whichhebegan working on through the fall and into the winter.
During Summer 2019, ho was sued in two different domeatic-relations lawsuits, both
secking payment of support obligations, He still did not, however, make
proparationstofileor actually filo either his 2018 individual or corporate income tax
returns on or about October 15, 2019, the extension due date.

In or around November 2019, Biden engaged a California accountant to
prepare his individual and corporate income tax returns for 2017 and 2018. The
California accountantbegangathering materials and started preparing Biden's 2017
and 2018 returns in early 2020. By that time, the domestic-relations lawsuits had
progressed, and having failed to do so previously, Biden was under court order to
provide his tax returnsorface potential sanctions, including imprisonment. On or
about. January27,2020,Biden signed a representation letter for the California

sccountants,averring thathe was providing the accountants with truthful and

accurateinformationandacknowledginghis responsibility for the accuracy of those
tax roturas. Overthedays that followed, Biden participated in a series of meetings.
with th California accountants and identified business and personal expenses in
connectionwithbistaxreturns. Duringthis process, Biden miscategorized certain
personal expenses as legitimate businessexpenses, resulting in a reduction in his tax
Tai Atthe same ti me,theCaliforniaaccountants overreported Biden's income,

pat Re
~_Onoral ry 18, 2020,Bidenfiled his individual and corporate income

tax returns wi al Revenue Servicefortax years 2017 and 2018. On his
2017 Fe sported $2,376,436 in total income and a self-assessed tax

due $126,009wastimely paid, leaving a balance due and
ow 17 Form1120forOwasco, PC, Biden reported gross

If-as ssedtax dueand owingof $13,630. On his 2018
187, 86in total income and a self-assessed tax of

timely paid,leaving a balance due and owing of
ments were includedatthe timeoffiling. On his 2018

ted grossreceipts $2,659,014 and a self:
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ber 18, 2021, a third

trian ayant mit Bi angon sh: O27 er 18, ’ -

party paid the Internal Revenue Service $955,800 to cover Biden'sself-assessed

individual taxliabilitywith interest and penalties for tax year 2017 and $956,632 to

cover Biden's self-assessed individual tax liability with interest and penalties for

taxyear2018.

TuxYears2016and2019

In.addition,inoraround February 2020, Biden's Californi
a ry 2020, Biden's California accountants

Se: ntSeninde Form 1040had notbeen filed. The return wasoriginally

roars dis arora October 2017 and showed $16,520 in taxes duc and owing:

» eliveredtoBidenatBiden's office,thisreturn was not filed with the

Dneisle ri0Ane learning in 2020 that the Form 1040 for 2016

rtd 8 ueor 1040 on June 12, 2020. For tax year 2016,

$102,395, of wh $1,550,288en income and a selfassessed tax dueof

$45,661. Biden did not include a, timely paid, leaving a balance due and owing of

2021, this. liability, k SndudeBE Onor about October 18,

pin ied interest. andpenalties, was also fully paid by a

LEH ai yo
about October15,2020;Hedid no Biden timely filed his 2019 Form 1040 on or

foran extension toautrod hyTaw iowa -,payhisestimated tax due when filing

total income ax a ron at Bor taxyour 2019, Biden reported $1,045,850 in

2021, this liability, plus accrued interes andowing of $197,872. On October

tna , plusccruedinterest andpenalties,was al: tober 15,

sane this 4 ass as also fully paid by the
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